
BOARD OF EDUCATION 
Ms. Jane Royer Barr 
Ms. Rose Filicetti 
Ms. Sandra Nichols 
Ms. Sue Roth 
Mr. Dana M. Sales 
Mr. Abel Sanchez 
Mr. Bruce Van Allen 

Santa Cruz County Board of Education Regular Board Meeting 
Santa Cruz County Office of Education December 20, 2018 
400 Encinal Street Time: 4:00 p.m. 
Santa Cruz, CA 95060 Board Room 

AGENDA 

1.0 CALL TO ORDER, ROLL CALL AND ESTABLISHMENT OF QUORUM 

Bruce Van Allen (President), Jane Royer Barr, Rose Filicetti, Sandra Nichols, Sue Roth, 
Dana Sales, Abel Sanchez 
Michael Watkins, Secretary 

2.0 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Bruce Van Allen (President) will lead the Pledge of Allegiance. 

3.0 APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

Agenda deletions and/or changes of sequence will be approved or the agenda will be approved as 
submitted. 

4.0 PUBLIC COMMENT 

This is an opportunity for the public to address the Board regarding items not on the agenda.  The 
Board President will recognize any member of the audience not previously placed on the agenda 
who wishes to speak on a matter directly related to school business.  Each speaker, on any 
specific topic, may speak up to three (3) minutes unless otherwise limited or extended by the 
President.  The President may allot time to those wishing to speak but no action will be taken on 
matters presented (E.C. Section 35145.5).  If appropriate, the President, or any Member of the 
Board, may direct that a matter be referred to the Superintendent’s Office for placement on a 
future agenda.  Please refer to item, Please Note, on the last page of this agenda. 

5.0 CONSENT AGENDA 

All items appearing on the consent agenda are recommended actions, which are considered to be 
routine in nature and will be acted upon as one motion.  Specific items may be removed for 
separate consideration.  Item(s) removed will be considered immediately following the consent 
agenda motion as Deferred Consent Items. 

5.0.1 Minutes of Regular Board Meeting held on November 15, 2018 
5.0.2 Routine Budget Revisions 
5.0.3 Surplus Equipment 
5.0.4 Donations 

1



Santa Cruz County Board of Education Page 2 
Agenda, Regular Meeting 
December 20, 2018 

5.1 DEFERRED CONSENT ITEMS (If Required) 

This item is placed on the agenda to address any items that might be pulled from Agenda 
Item 5.0 for further discussion/consideration if so determined. 

6.0 SUPERINTENDENT RECOGNITION 

The Board will recognize Superintendent Michael Watkins for his 38 years of service to the Santa 
Cruz County Office of Education and for his 46 years of service to education and children. 

Presenter:  Faris Sabbah, Deputy Superintendent 

7.0 ANNUAL ORGANIZATION OF THE BOARD 

The Board shall organize at a meeting held each year by electing one of their number as president 
of the Board.  The meeting shall be the first meeting on or after the last Friday in November (E.C. 
1009) 

7.1 Nominations for President of the Board 

Bruce Van Allen (President) will call for nominations for Board President. 

7.2 Election of Board President 

The Board will, by motion, elect a president. 

Call for Motion:  Bruce Van Allen (President) 

7.3 Nominations for Vice-President of the Board 

The President will call for nominations for Board Vice President 

7.4 Election of Board Vice President 

The Board will, by motion, elect a vice president. 

Call for Motion:  Board President 

7.5 Seating of New Officers of the Board of Trustees 

New officers will be seated. 

7.6 Appointment of Chairperson, County Committee on School District Organization 

The Board will appoint a chairperson to the County Committee on School District 
Organization.  

2



Santa Cruz County Board of Education Page 3 
Agenda, Regular Meeting 
December 20, 2018 

7.7 Establishment of Regular Meetings of the Board 

The Board will discuss, and by motion, select the day of the month and the time for 
regular meetings of the County Board of Education. 

Call for Motion:  Board President 

7.8 Appointment to Board Ad Hoc Committees 

7.8.1 Board Budget Committee 
7.8.2 Policy Committee 
7.8.3 Charter Schools Committee 
7.8.4 Community Outreach and Legislative Committee 
7.8.5 Santa Cruz County School Board Association 
7.8.6 Property Acquisition Committee 
7.8.6 Other committee(s) as determined 

8.0 CORRESPONDENCE 

Correspondence will be available for review at the meeting location. 

9.0 UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

None. 

10.0 PUBLIC HEARINGS/NEW BUSINESS AND ACTION ITEMS 

10.1 Closed Session Disclosure (Open Session) 

The Board President will disclose that the Board will, in closed session, discuss matters 
relating to the possible purchase of certain real properties as noted in 10.2.  Comments 
from the public will be taken prior to commencing closed session. 

10.2 Conference with Real Property Negotiators (Closed Session) 

The Board will consider the purchase of certain real property and/or give further direction 
concerning price and/or terms for the purchase to the Board’s negotiator.  (Govt. Code 
Section 54956.8) 

Agency Representatives: Mary Hart, Deputy Superintendent, Business Services 
Reuben Helick, Cushman & Wakefield 
Mark Williams, Fagen Friedman & Fulfrost LLP 

Property: 231 Green Valley Rd., Watsonville, CA 
Santa Cruz County 
APN:  048-061-37 

Negotiating Parties: Santa Cruz County Office of Education and  
The Sereno Group 

3



Santa Cruz County Board of Education Page 4 
Agenda, Regular Meeting 
December 20, 2018 

10.3 Report Out on Closed Session (Open Session) 

The Board President will report on any reportable action(s) taken by the Board in Closed 
Session. 

10.4 Approval of the 2018-2019 Budget Development Calendar 

The Board will be asked to approve the 2018-2019 Budget Development Process and 
Single Budget Adoption Timelines as submitted and recommended by administration. 

Presenter:  Mary Hart, Deputy Superintendent, Business Services 

Call for Motion:  Board President 

10.5 Approval of Board Bylaw 9290 – Conflict of Interest 

The Board will be asked to approve an update of Board Bylaw 9290 to include the new 
position of Chief Technology Officer. 

Presenter:  Mary Hart, Deputy Superintendent, Business Services 

Call for Motion:  Board President 

11.0 REPORTS, DISCUSSIONS AND PRESENTATIONS 

11.1 Request from Live Oak School District on Charter Transfer 

The Board will discuss a request concerning the oversight of Cypress Charter School from the 

Live Oak School District..

Presenter:  Faris Sabbah, Deputy Superintendent 

11.2 First Interim Financial Report 

In accordance with Education Code 1240(L), the Superintendent is required to certify the 
first interim financial report and present it to the Board for review in public session. 

Presenter:  Mary Hart, Deputy Superintendent, Business Services 

12.0 SUPERINTENDENT REPORT 

County Superintendent of Schools, Michael Watkins, will provide an update on activities and 
matters of interest. 

13.0 TRUSTEE REPORTS 

Trustees will report on matters, events and activities as related to Board goals of:  Advocating for 
Students, maintaining community relations and promoting student achievement. 

14.0 AD HOC COMMITTEE REPORTS/ACTIONS 

4



Santa Cruz County Board of Education Page 5 
Agenda, Regular Meeting 
December 20, 2018 

15.0 ADDITIONS, IF ANY, TO FUTURE BOARD AGENDA ITEMS 

The Board may give direction regarding placement of future Board agenda items. 

Request for Additional Items:  Board President 

16.0 SCHEDULE OF MEETINGS AND COMING EVENTS 

Date:  TBD Regular Meeting of the County Board of Education 
Time:  TBD 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA 95060 

17.0 ADJOURNMENT 

The Board President will adjourn the meeting. 

PLEASE NOTE: 

Public Participation: 

All persons are encouraged to attend and, when appropriate, to participate in meetings of the Santa Cruz County Board of Education.  If you wish to 
speak to an item on the agenda, please be present at the beginning of the meeting as any item, upon motion, may be moved to the beginning of the 
agenda.  Persons wishing to address the Board are asked to state their name for the record.  The president of the Board will establish a time limit of 
three (3) minutes, unless otherwise stated by the president, for comments from the public.  Consideration of all matters is conducted in open session 
except those relating to litigation, personnel and employee negotiations, which, by law, may be considered in closed session.  Expulsion appeal 
hearings are heard in closed session unless a request for hearing in open session is made by the appellant. 

Backup Documentation: 

Any writings or documents that are public records and are provided to a majority of the governing board regarding an open session item on this agenda 
will be made available for public inspection in the County Office of Education, located 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA 95060, during normal 
business hours. 

Translation Requests: 

Spanish language translation is available on an as-needed basis.  Please make advance arrangements with Jim Guss by telephone at (831) 466-5900.  
Traducciones del inglés al español y del español al inglés están disponibles en las sesiones de la mesa directiva.  Por favor haga arreglos por anticipado 
con Jim Guss por teléfono al numero (831) 466-5900. 

ADA Compliance: 

In compliance with Government Code section 54954.2 (a), The Santa Cruz County Office of Education will, on request, make this agenda available in 
appropriate alternative formats to persons with a disability, as required by Section 202 of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sec 
12132), and the federal rules and regulations adopted in implementation thereof.  Individuals who need this agenda in an alternative format or who 
need a disability-related modification or accommodation in order to participate in the meeting should contact Jim Guss, Administrative Aide to the 
Superintendent, 400 Encinal St., Santa Cruz, CA 95060, (831) 466-5900. 

5



December 20, 2018 Agenda Item #5.0.1 

SUPERINTENDENT’S RECOMMENDATION FOR BOARD ACTION 

SUBJECT: 

Consent Agenda:  Regular Board Meeting Minutes, November 15,  2018

DEPARTMENT/PROGRAM: 

Santa Cruz County Board of Education 

ACTION REQUESTED: 

Board Approval 

PREVIOUS STAFF/BOARD ACTION: 

None 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION AND/OR STATEMENT OF NEED: 

Consent Agenda items are recommended for approval as actions routine in nature and acted upon 
as one motion.  Specific items may be removed for separate consideration. 

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS: 

None 

CONTACT PERSON(S): 

Michael Watkins, Superintendent 
Jim Guss, Administrative Aide to the Superintendent 

6



BOARD OF EDUCATION 
Ms. Jane Royer Barr 
Ms. Rose Filicetti 
Ms. Sandra Nichols 
Ms. Sue Roth 
Mr. Dana M. Sales 
Mr. Abel Sanchez 
Mr. Bruce Van Allen

Santa Cruz County Board of Education Regular Board Meeting 
Santa Cruz County Office of Education November 15, 2018 
400 Encinal Street Time: 4:00 p.m. 
Santa Cruz, CA 95060 Board Room 

UNAPPROVED MINUTES 

1.0 CALL TO ORDER, ROLL CALL AND ESTABLISHMENT OF QUORUM 

Board Present Staff Present 

Bruce Van Allen (President) Faris Sabbah 
Jane Barr Mary Hart 
Rose Filicetti Jivan Dhaliwal 
Sandra Nichols Jim Guss 
Sue Roth 
Dana Sales 
Abel Sanchez 
Michael Watkins (Secretary) 

Absent 

None. 

2.0 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Bruce Van Allen (President) led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

3.0 APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

It was M.S.C (Barr/Filicetti) to approve the Agenda. 

Ayes: Barr, Filicetti, Nichols, Roth, Sales, Sanchez, Van Allen 
Nays:  None 
Abstain: None 
Absent:  None 

4.0 PUBLIC COMMENT 

None. 

5.0 CONSENT AGENDA 

5.0.1 Minutes of the Board Meeting held on October 18, 2018 
5.0.2 Minutes of the Special Board Meeting held on November 2, 2018 
5.0.3 Routine Budget Revisions 
5.0.4 Treasurer’s Quarterly Investment Report, Quarter Ended September 30, 2018 

7



Santa Cruz County Board of Education Page 2 
Regular Board Meeting 
November 15, 2018 

It was M.S.C. (Sales/Filicetti) to approve Consent Agenda Items 5.0.1, 5.0.2 and 5.0.3. 

Ayes: Barr, Filicetti, Nichols, Roth, Sales, Sanchez, Van Allen 
Nays:  None 
Abstain: None 
Absent:  None 

5.1 DEFERRED CONSENT ITEMS (if required) 

Trustee Barr asked a few clarifying questions concerning the Treasurer’s Quarterly 
Investment Report. 

It was M.S.C. (Barr/Sales) to approve Consent Agenda Item 5.0.4. 

Ayes: Barr, Filicetti, Nichols, Roth, Sales, Sanchez, Van Allen 
Nays:  None 
Abstain: None 
Absent:  None 

6.0 CORRESPONDENCE 

None. 

7.0 RECOGNITIONS 

7.1 Debbie Stanbra 

The Board recognized Debbie Stanbra, Director, Technology, Business Information 
Services, for her 21 years of service to the COE. 

7.2 Carol Trent 

The Board recognized Carol Trent, Senior Instructional Aide, Alternative Education, for 
her 40 years of service to the COE. 

7.3 Heather Hutchison 

The Board planned on recognizing Heather Hutchison, Fiscal Accountant, Career 
Technical Education Partnership, for her 22 years of service to the COE; however, Ms. 
Hutchison was unable to attend the meeting. 

7.4 Dave Barnett 

The Board recognized Dave Barnett, Director, Technology Infrastructure, for his 20 years 
of service to the COE. 

8



Santa Cruz County Board of Education Page 3 
Regular Board Meeting 
November 15, 2018 

8.0 REPORTS, DISCUSSIONS AND PRESENTATIONS 

8.1 Santa Cruz County College Commitment (S4C) 

The Board received an in-depth report on the Santa Cruz County College Commitment 
(S4C) from Cristine Chopra, Executive Director of S4C.  Ms. Chopra discussed how 
workers with education beyond high school fared much better than those without a higher 
education during the recession.  She also went over the S4C Governance Structure, the 
Theory of Change, and creating a college-going culture in Santa Cruz County. 

8.2 California School Dashboard Local Indicators 

The Board received a report on the California School Dashboard Local Indicators from 
John Rice, Sr. Director, Alternative Education.  Mr. Rice gave an in-depth explanation on 
each of the 10 Priority State and Local Indicators and their ratings for our programs. 

8.3 Annual Report – Williams Legislation:  Status of Decile 1-3 Schools – Pajaro Valley 
Unified School District and Santa Cruz City School District 

Thom Dunks, Leadership Coach, TICAL, presented to the Board the annual Williams 
Legislation report for Pajaro Valley Unified School District and Santa Cruz City School 
District.  This report is completed in accordance with Education Code Section 1240(2)(B) 
which requires, pursuant to the Williams Settlement Legislation, that the County 
Superintendent of Schools report the findings of visits and reviews of schools within the 
county designated as decile 1-3 schools. 

8.4 Annual Report – Pacific Collegiate School 

Tom Morell, Board President of Pacific Collegiate School (PCS) and Simon Fletcher, 
PCS Principal presented to the Board the annual report for PCS.  Topics covered during 
the presentation included:  2018 CAASPP results, Advanced Placement (AP) test results, 
the 2017 SAT results, the 2017 ACT results, College Admissions, 2017-2018 LCAP 
goals, WASC Accreditation (six year accreditation term through 2021), the PCS Strategic 
Plan, and the PCS Diversity Plan and progress.  Also discussed during the presentation 
were:  School Culture and Climate, Overall Enrollment Annual Comparison (2014-2015 
through 2018-2019), financial oversight (LCAP Template for 2018-2019), and the PCS 
Diversity Report and Actin Plan (2016-2020). 

8.5 Superintendent Salary Schedule 

Troy Cope, Senior Director, Human Resources, presented to the Board the 
recommendation by the Superintendent’s Compensation Subcommittee (Trustees Van 
Allen, Barr and Sales) on creating a new Superintendent Salary Schedule and setting a 
salary for incoming Superintendent Dr. Faris Sabbah.  The Subcommittee recommended 
that the Board approve a five-step salary schedule and that the Board also approve 
placing Dr. Sabbah on Step I of the salary schedule. 

It was M.S.C. (Sales/Barr) to approve the new Superintendent’s Salary Schedule and to 
place incoming Superintendent Faris Sabbah on Step I of the new Superintendent’s 
Salary Schedule. 

9



Santa Cruz County Board of Education Page 4 
Regular Board Meeting 
November 15, 2018 

Ayes: Barr, Filicetti, Nichols, Roth, Sales, Sanchez, Van Allen 
Nays:  None 
Abstain: None 
Absent:  None 

9.0 UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

None. 

10.0 SUPERINTENDENT REPORT 

County Superintended of Schools, Michael Watkins, provided an update on his activities and 
matters of interest since his last report on October 18, 2018. 

11.0 TRUSTEE REPORTS 

Trustee Van Allen stated that he helped a few school board members with their campaigns and 
also helped with a couple of school bonds that passed during the election. 

Trustee Roth advised the Board that Proposition A in Scotts Valley had reached 69% in hopes of 
passing.  She also stated that she had attended a property meeting, a charter meeting and the most 
recent SCZCSBA meeting.  Trustee Roth advised that we check with legal counsel on when a 
charter applications can be presented to the Board. 

Trustee Nichols reported that she was recruited by the Tony Thurmond campaign to volunteer as 
a poll watcher during election night.  She stated that it was a stimulating experience watching 
how the votes were tabulated at the elections office. 

Trustee Sales did not have a report. 

Trustee Sanchez did not have a report. 

Trustee Filicetti stated that she volunteered for Santa Clara County Supervisor Simitian’s event: 
“Which Way Congress?" Will Democrats Win Back The House? And If So, What Do They Do 
With It?  She also volunteered at the polls on Election Day and at Digital NEST’s 4th Birthday 
party. 

12.0 AD HOC COMMITTEE REPORTS/ACTIONS 

None 

13.0 ADDITIONS, IF ANY, TO FUTURE BOARD AGENDA ITEMS 

None. 

10



Santa Cruz County Board of Education Page 5 
Regular Board Meeting 
November 15, 2018 

14.0 SCHEDULE OF MEETINGS AND COMING EVENTS 

November 29-  CSBA Annual Education Conference 
December 1, 2018 San Francisco, CA 

December 20, 2018 Regular Meeting of the County Board of Education 
4:00 pm 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA 95060 

January 7, 2019 Special Meeting of the County Board of Education 
5:00 pm 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA 95060 

January 17, 2019 Regular Meeting of the County Board of Education 
TBD  400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA 95060 

15.0 ADJOURNMENT 

Bruce Van Allen (President) adjourned the meeting at 6:28 p.m. 

11



December 20, 2018 Agenda Item #5.0.2 

SUPERINTENDENT’S RECOMMENDATION FOR BOARD ACTION 

SUBJECT: 

Consent Agenda:  Routine Budget Revisions 

DEPARTMENT/PROGRAM: 

Business Services/Administration 

ACTION REQUESTED: 

Board Approval 

PREVIOUS STAFF/BOARD Action: 

None 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION AND/OR STATEMENT OF NEED: 

Detailed revisions and narrative follow this page. 

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS: 

Adjusts 2018-2019 Spending Plan 

CONTACT PERSON(S): 

Jean Gardner, Senior Director, Fiscal Services

Rebecca Olker, Director, Fiscal Services

12



13



14



15



16



17



18



December 20, 2018  Agenda Item #5.0.3 

SUPERINTENDENT’S RECOMMENDATION FOR BOARD ACTION 
 
 
SUBJECT: 
 
Surplus Items 
 
DEPARTMENT/PROGRAM: 
 
Santa Cruz County Board of Education 
 
ACTION REQUESTED: 
 
Authorize staff to dispose of surplus items as follows: 
 
Program    Item(s)      Value 
 
Maintenance and Operations  2005 Ford Explorer    $300.00 
 
Technology    Forty Seven (47) Desktop Computers $0.00 
 
PREVIOUS STAFF/BOARD ACTION: 
 
None. 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION AND/OR STATEMENT OF NEED: 
 
County Board of Education Policy P-3260 and Education Code, requires that all surplus items be 
reviewed and surplused through County Board action. 
 
FISCAL IMPLICATIONS: 
 
None. 
 
CONTACT PERSON(S): 
 
Mary Hart, Deputy Superintendent, Business Services 

19



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 

Michael C. Watkins, Superintendent • 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA 95060 • 831-466-5600 • FAX 831-466-5607 • www.santacruzcoe.org 

 

 

To: Santa Cruz County Board of Trustees 

 

From: Mary Hart, Deputy Superintendent 

 

Date: December 20, 2018 

 

RE: Surplus Vehicle 

 

 

The County Office of Education (COE) owns a 2005 Ford Explorer.  The vehicle identification  

number (VIN) is 1FMZU62E65ZA62881.   The vehicle in no longer running and would take 

significant resources to repair (see estimate attached).  We have determined that it could not be 

sold for more than $2,500 and therefore we advise to implement Education Code: 17546(a) (see 

attached).  In addition, I have attached copies of blue book values for vehicles in running and non-

running condition for your review. 

  

Per board policy 3260, the board must evaluate and vote on the disposal method for the vehicle. 

 The board policy is attached.  

  

The administration has determined the most economical and appropriate method of disposal is 

listed in item 4 of the attached policy.  “If the Board, by unanimous vote of those members present, 

finds that the property is of insufficient value to defray the cost of arranging a sale,  the property 

shall be disposed of in the most efficient manner not inconsistent with the Education Code. 

  

The administration recommends the board vote to dispose of the vehicle through a bidding process 

but for not less than $250.00. 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
Ms. Jane Royer Barr 
Ms. Rose Filicetti 
Ms. Sandra Nichols 
Ms. Sue Roth 
Mr. Dana M. Sales 
Mr. Abel Sanchez 
Mr. Bruce Van Allen 

 

20



Adopted 11/20/2014 

 
 

 

 

21



 
 

 

 

22



 

23



Santa Cruz County Board of Education  
Agenda 
December 20, 2018 
 
 
 
 
To: Santa Cruz County Board of Trustees 
 
From: Mary Hart, Deputy Superintendent 
 
Date: December 20, 2018 
 
RE: Surplus Computers (EWASTE) 
 
The County Office of Education (COE) owns 47 Desktop computers that are not viable for 
business.  The ages range from 2008-2012.  
 
We have determined that it they can not be sold for more then $2,500 even as a “lot” and therefore 
we advise to implement Education Code: 17546(a) (see attached).  In addition, I have attached a 
list of the items for your review. 
 
Per board policy 3260 the board must evaluate and vote on the disposal method for the computers. 
The board policy is attached. 
 
The administration has determined the most economical and appropriate method of disposal is lited 
in item 4 of the attached policy.  “If the Board, by unanimous vote of those members present, finds 
that the property is of insufficient value to defray the cost of arranging a sale,  the property shall be 
disposed of in the most efficient manner not inconsistent with the Education Code. 
  
The administration recommends the board vote to dispose of the computer by supplusing through a 
local non profit. 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

24



Santa Cruz County Board of Education  
Agenda 
December 20, 2018 
 
Asset 

 
ProductId 

 
SerialNumber 

 
PurchasDate 

 
Timestamp 

 

20213 Desktop - Dell - OptiPlex - 755 BVDVTG1 7/17/2008 6/19/2018 ALT 

20214 Desktop - Dell - OptiPlex - 755 FXB1ZH1 1/20/2009 6/19/2018 ALT 

20218 Desktop - Dell - OptiPlex - 755 5YB1ZH1 1/20/2009 6/19/2018 ALT 

15648 Desktop - Dell - OptiPlex - 755 9T0K3H1 8/8/2008 6/19/2018 LAB 

15667 Desktop - Dell - OptiPlex - 755 GS0K3H1 8/8/2008 6/19/2018 LAB 

15653 Desktop - Dell - OptiPlex - 755 65ZJ3H1 8/8/2008 6/19/2018 LAB 

15537 Desktop - Dell - OptiPlex - 755 DXB1ZH1 1/20/2009 6/19/2018 LAB 

15661 Desktop - Dell - OptiPlex - 755 15ZJ3H1 8/8/2008 6/19/2018 LAB 

15967 Desktop - Dell - OptiPlex - 755 5T0K3H1 8/8/2008 6/19/2018 LAB 

15670 Desktop - Dell - OptiPlex - 755 B1X1DG1 5/29/2008 6/19/2018 LAB 

15646 Desktop - Dell - OptiPlex - 755 CQ0K3H1 8/8/2008 6/19/2018 LAB 

15656 Desktop - Dell - OptiPlex - 755 BT0K3H1 8/8/2008 6/19/2018 LAB 

15654 Desktop - Dell - OptiPlex - 755 FS0K3H1 8/8/2008 6/19/2018 LAB 

15664 Desktop - Dell - OptiPlex - 755 C5ZJ3H1 8/8/2008 6/19/2018 LAB 

15660 Desktop - Dell - OptiPlex - 755 8T0K3H1 8/8/2008 6/19/2018 LAB 

15649 Desktop - Dell - OptiPlex - 755 7T0K3H1 8/8/2008 6/19/2018 LAB 

15650 Desktop - Dell - OptiPlex - 755 95ZJ3H1 8/8/2008 6/19/2018 LAB 

20211 Desktop - Dell - OptiPlex - 755 CXB1ZH1 1/20/2009 6/19/2018 LAB 

15647 Desktop - Dell - OptiPlex - 755 BQ0K3H1 8/8/2008 6/19/2018 LAB 

15652 Desktop - Dell - OptiPlex - 755 DQ0K3H1 8/8/2008 6/19/2018 LAB 

15546 Desktop - Dell - OptiPlex - 755 JXB1ZH1 1/20/2009 6/19/2018 LAB 

15655 Desktop - Dell - OptiPlex - 755 HS0K3H1 8/8/2008 6/19/2018 LAB 

15657 Desktop - Dell - OptiPlex - 755 G5ZJ3H1 8/8/2008 6/19/2018 LAB 

25



Santa Cruz County Board of Education  
Agenda 
December 20, 2018 
20258 Desktop - Dell - OptiPlex - 755 29VBDG1 5/30/2008 6/19/2018 SPD 

20147 Desktop - Dell - OptiPlex - 755 BXB1ZH1 1/20/2009 6/19/2018 SPD 

15613 Desktop - Dell - OptiPlex - 755 2pp5hf1 1/17/2009 9/27/2018 ALT 

20215 Desktop - Dell - OptiPlex - 755 7vcxnh1 11/1/2009 9/27/2018 ALT 

15627 Desktop - Dell - OptiPlex - 755 72J4HF1 1/16/2008 9/27/2018 ALT 

20257 Desktop - Dell - OptiPlex - 755 6PP5HF1 1/16/2008 9/27/2018 ALT 

15622 Desktop - Dell - OptiPlex - 755 BJ76HF1 1/16/2008 9/27/2018  

15866 Desktop - Dell - OptiPlex - 760 8NZQJL1 12/11/2009 9/27/2018 BUS 

15840 Desktop - Dell - OptiPlex - 760 C46N4K1 5/26/2009 9/27/2018 EDU 

15579 Desktop - Dell - OptiPlex - 760 8z5n4k1 5/27/2010 9/27/2018 ROP 

15056 Desktop - Dell - OptiPlex - 760 G76N4K1 5/26/2009 9/27/2018 SPD 

15055 Desktop - Dell - OptiPlex - 760 2Z5N4K1 5/26/2009 9/27/2018 SPD 

15881 Desktop - Dell - OptiPlex - 780 c0z5cp1 2/18/2011 9/27/2018 ALT 

16058 Desktop - Dell - OptiPlex - 780 2QQBXQ1 7/6/2011 9/27/2018 ALT 

16032 Desktop - Dell - OptiPlex - 780 2QN8XQ1 7/6/2011 9/27/2018 ALT 

16042 Desktop - Dell - OptiPlex - 780 2QM9XQ1 7/6/2011 9/27/2018 ALT 

16057 Desktop - Dell - OptiPlex - 780 2QL9XQ1 7/6/2011 9/27/2018 ALT 

16046 Desktop - Dell - OptiPlex - 780 2QQ4XQ1 7/6/2011 9/27/2018 ALT 

16041 Desktop - Dell - OptiPlex - 780 2QM8XQ1 7/6/2011 9/27/2018 ALT 

16040 Desktop - Dell - OptiPlex - 780 2QN9XQ1 7/6/2011 9/27/2018 ALT 

15874 Desktop - Dell - OptiPlex - 780 8sw5yq1 7/19/2012 9/27/2018 SPD 

20347 Desktop - Dell - OptiPlex - 780 BY5N4K1 5/26/2009 9/27/2018 SPD 

15959 Desktop - Dell - OptiPlex - 780 1C9NDP1 3/18/2011 9/27/2018 SPD 

15931 Desktop - Dell - OptiPlex - 780 39fn9p1 1/21/2012 9/27/2018  

 

26



 

 

 

  
 Business and Non-instructional Operations       BP 3260  
 
SALE OR OTHER DISPOSITION OF SURPLUS PERSONAL PROPERTY 
  
The Santa Cruz County Superintendent of Schools (County Superintendent) may sell or 
otherwise dispose of any personal property that he/she declares surplus to the needs of the 
Santa Cruz County Office of Education (SCCOE), through a process consistent with 
Education Code.  
 
Personal property is defined as instructional materials, equipment, relocatable buildings, 
supplies, vehicles, and other such items.  
 
The following shall be the order in which disposal is accomplished.  
1. The County Superintendent is required to certify the value of the property in a report to the 
Santa Cruz County Board of Education (County Board) for its review.  
 
2. Offer the property at fair market value to all school districts within Santa Cruz County.  
 
3. Conduct a public sale at fair market value.  
 
4. Surplus personal property that the County Superintendent and the County Board agree to 
be of insufficient value to defray the cost of arranging a sale shall be disposed of in the most 
efficient manner not inconsistent with the Education Code.  
 
For surplus personal property estimated to be over $25,000 that belongs to SCCOE, the 
County Superintendent is required by law to:  
 
1. Obtain an independent evaluation of the property.  
 
2. Bring the proposed sale to the attention of the County Board for its approval.  
 
3. Advertise property for sale in a newspaper of general circulation for no less than one week.  
 
Business and Non-instructional Operations BP 3260  
SALE OR OTHER DISPOSITION OF SURPLUS PERSONAL PROPERTY (continued)  
Legal Reference:  

EDUCATION CODE  
1279 County Superintendent of Schools, disposing of personal property  

1605 Property Title  

17540-17542 Sale or lease of personal property by on district to another  

17545-17555 Sale of personal property  

35168 Inventory, including record of time and mode of disposal  

60500-60530 Sale, donation, or disposal of instructional materials  
GOVERNMENT CODE  
25505 District property, disposition, proceeds  
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5  
3944 Consolidated categorical programs, district title to equipment  
3946 Disposal of equipment purchased with state and federal consolidated application funds  
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 40  
549 Surplus Property  

27



Santa Cruz County Board of Education  
Agenda 
December 20, 2018 
 
BP 3270 
 
SALE AND DISPOSAL OF BOOKS, EQUIPMENT AND SUPPLIES 
When any Santa Cruz County Office of Education (SCCOE)-owned instructional materials, 
equipment, supplies, or other personal property becomes unusable, obsolete, or no longer 
needed, the County Superintendent of Schools or designee shall notify the County Board of 
Education (CBE), provide an estimated value, and recommend whether the items be sold or 
disposed of by one of the methods prescribed in law and administrative regulation. Upon 
approval by the CBE, the County Superintendent or designee shall arrange for the sale or 
disposal of these items. 
 
If the CBE members who are in attendance at a meeting unanimously agree that the property, 
whether one or more items, does not exceed $2,500 in value, the property may be sold without 
advertising for bids. (Education Code 17546) 
 
If the CBE members who are in attendance at a meeting unanimously find that the value of the 
property is insufficient to defray the costs of arranging a sale, the property may be donated to a 
charitable organization deemed appropriate by the CBE or may be disposed of in the local public 
dump. (Education Code 17546) 
 
Instructional materials may be considered obsolete or unusable when they: 
 
1. Have been replaced by more recent editions or new materials selected by the CBE and 
have no foreseeable value in other instructional areas. 
 
2. Contain information rendered inaccurate or incomplete by new research or technologies. 
 
3. Contain demeaning, stereotyping, or patronizing references to any group of persons 
protected against discrimination by law or CBE policy. 
 
4. Are damaged beyond use or repair. 
 
The County Superintendent or designee shall establish procedures to be used when selling 
equipment for which the federal government has a right to receive all or part of the proceeds. 
These procedures shall ensure a reasonable amount of competition so as to result in the highest 
possible revenue. 
 
Legal Reference: 
EDUCATION CODE 
17540-17542 Sale or lease of personal property by one district to another 
17545-17555 Sale of personal property 
35168 Inventory, including record of time and mode of disposal 
42291.5 Temporary school bus designation 
42303 School bus sale to another district 
60500-60530 Sale, donation, or disposal of instructional materials 
BP 3270 
Sale and Disposal of Books, Equipment and Supplies 
Page 2 

28



Santa Cruz County Board of Education  
Agenda 
December 20, 2018 
GOVERNMENT CODE 
25505 District property; disposition; proceeds 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 
3944 Consolidated categorical programs, district title to equipment 
3946 Disposal of equipment purchased with state and federal consolidated application funds 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 40 
549 Surplus property 
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34 
80.32 Equipment acquired under a grant or sub-grant 
Management Resources: 
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 
California School Accounting Manual 
Standards for Evaluating Instructional Materials for Social Content, 2000 
WEB SITES 
California Department of Education: http://www.cde.ca.gov 
School Services of California, Inc.: http://www.sscal.com 
Adopted: June 21, 2018 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
      

29



Santa Cruz County Board of Education  
Agenda 
December 20, 2018 
 
EDUCATION CODE 

  

17545.  (a) The governing board of any school district may sell for 
cash any personal property belonging to the district if the property 

is not required for school purposes, or if it should be disposed of 

for the purpose of replacement, or if it is unsatisfactory or not 

suitable for school use. There shall be no sale until notice has been 

given by posting in at least three public places in the district for 

not less than two weeks, or by publication for at least once a week 

for a period of not less than two weeks in a newspaper published in 

the district and having a general circulation there. If there is no 

such newspaper, then in a newspaper having a general circulation in 

the district; or if there is no newspaper, then in a newspaper having 

a general circulation in a county in which the district or any part 

thereof is situated. The board shall sell the property to the highest 

responsible bidder, or shall reject all bids. 

   (b) The governing board may choose to conduct any sale of personal 

property authorized under this section by means of a public auction 

conducted by employees of the district or other public agencies, or 

by contract with a private auction firm. The board may delegate to 

the district employee responsible for conducting the auction the 

authority to transfer the personal property to the highest 

responsible bidder upon completion of the auction and after payment 

has been received by the district. 

  

  

17546.  (a) If the governing board, by a unanimous vote of those 

members present, finds that the property, whether one or more items, 

does not exceed in value the sum of two thousand five hundred dollars 

($2,500), it may be sold at private sale without advertising, by any 

employee of the district empowered for that purpose by the board. 

   (b) Any item or items of property having previously been offered 

for sale pursuant to Section 17545, but for which no qualified bid 
was received, may be sold at private sale without advertising by any 

employee of the district empowered for that purpose by the board. 

   (c) If the board, by a unanimous vote of those members present, 

finds that the property is of insufficient value to defray the costs 

of arranging a sale, the property may be donated to a charitable 

organization deemed appropriate by the board, or it may be disposed 

of in the local public dump on order of any employee of the district 

empowered for that purpose by the board. 

  

  

  

17547.  The money received from the sale shall be placed to the 

credit of the fund from which the original expenditure for the 

purchase of the property was made or in the general or reserve fund 

of the district. 

  

  
  
  
 

30



 

December 20, 2018  Agenda Item #5.0.4 

SUPERINTENDENT’S RECOMMENDATION FOR BOARD ACTION 
 
 
SUBJECT: 
 
Gifts and Donations 
 
DEPARTMENT/PROGRAM: 
 
Santa Cruz County Board of Education 
 
ACTION REQUESTED: 
 
Accept gifts and donations as follows: 
 
Program   Donor      Value 
 
Oasis High School  Joshua and Jeanne Conner   $1,500.00 
 
Oasis High School  Dave and Annette Allen   $200.00 
 
Special Education Dept. Santa Cruz Beach Boardwalk   $450.00 
 
CTEP    Foundation for Allied Dental Education $8,750.00 
 
PREVIOUS STAFF/BOARD ACTION: 
 
None.  An acknowledgement letter will be sent to the donor following Board Action. 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION AND/OR STATEMENT OF NEED: 
 
County Board of Education Policy P-3280, requires that all gifts and donations received by 
programs conducted by the County Superintendent of Schools be accepted by the County Board 
of Education. 
 
FISCAL IMPLICATIONS: 
 
Gifts/Donations received will be utilized by the programs to which they were donated. 
 
CONTACT PERSON(S): 
 
Michael Watkins, Superintendent 
Jim Guss, Executive Aide to the Superintendent 

31



December 20, 2018 Agenda Item #10.4 

SUPERINTENDENT’S RECOMMENDATION FOR BOARD ACTION 

SUBJECT: 

2019-2020 Budget Calendar Adoption 

DEPARTMENT/PROGRAM: 

Business Services/Administration 

ACTION REQUESTED: 

Approve calendar for single budget adoption timelines for 2019-2020. 

PREVIOUS STAFF/BOARD ACTION: 

None. 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION AND/OR STATEMENT OF NEED: 

The Board is asked to approve the attached Budget Calendar as the start of the budget 
development process for 2019-2020.  The calendar is intended to keep us on track in various 
steps required in developing our fiscal plan. 

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS: 

None. 

CONTACT PERSON(S): 

Mary Hart, Deputy Superintendent, Business Services 
Jean Gardner, Senior Director, Fiscal Services 

32



MH:RAO 
12/13/18 

SANTA CRUZ COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
BUDGET DEVELOPMENT PROCESS AND TIMELINE 

Single Budget Adoption 
2019-20 

GOAL:  Develop a balanced operating Budget to meet the goals and service priorities of 
the Santa Cruz County Office of Education and align with the LCAP 

OBJECTIVIES  ACTIVITIES/PROCEDURES DATE         RESPONSIBILITY 

1.0 Prepare preliminary 1.1 Identify preliminary income 3rd week Deputy Supt. 
 2018-19 income estimates. In January
 Business 
 projections. 

2.0 Gather and evaluate 2.1 Cabinet/management  2nd week Superintendent 
Budget input   Discussion of major changes/     in February 

programs anticipated to be  
proposed. 

2.2 Distribute program Budget 3rd  week Deputy Supt. 
instructions and forms to in February Business 
department directors/ 
managers. 

2.3 Review preliminary Budget 4th week Director/ 
personnel requests with  in February Program Mgrs/ 
division Deputy Supt Bus 

2.4 Confirm preliminary person- 4th week Deputy Supt. 
nel assignments with directors/ in February Business 
program managers. 

2.5 Return preliminary program 4th  week Directors & 
Budgets to Deputy Supt .Bus. in February Prog. Mgrs. 

2.6 Review Budget personnel 4th week Deputy Supt. 
requests in Cabinet.  in February Business 

2.7 Cabinet review of personnel 4th week Supt./ 
status/changes.  in February Cabinet 

2.8 Refine program Budgets. By 1st week Directors  
April  & Prog. Mgrs. 

2.9 Prepare preliminary Budget 2nd week Deputy Supt. 
summary document.  of April  Business 

2.10 Refine program Budgets as 3rd week Deputy Supt. 
necessary and review with of April  Business 
directors, program managers.  

3.0 Review and adopt final Budget 

3.1 Schedule board Ad Hoc study  
Session(s) as necessary             Early May Board of Educ. 

33



MH:RAO 
12/13/18 

3.2 Report on status of  May 17  Deputy Supt. 
preliminary Budget summary Brd. Mtg. Business 
and  LCAP to Board. 

3.3 Update preliminary Budget Ongoing Deputy Supt. 
as necessary, to reflect Business 
personnel, programmatic, 
fiscal changes, if any. 

3.4 Publish legal notice of  June 1 Deputy Supt. 
public hearing on final Budget Business 
(min. 10 days before hearing). 

3.5 Hold public hearing on final June 14  Board of 
Budget and LCAP(no later Education 
than July 1) (additional June 
Meeting for Public Hearing) 

3.6 Adopt final Budget and LCAP June  21 Board of Educ. 

3.7 Submit final Budget to State July 1 Deputy Supt. 
Business 

4.0 Ongoing Review 4.1 Update final Budget to Within 45 Deputy Supt. 
 of Budget. reflect end-of-year status and days after Business 

final income estimates,  State Budget 
if necessary. 

4.2 Distribute Budget summary to Months of Deputy Supt. 
directors and program  June, July, Business 
managers. August 

4.3 Review status of Budget with Ongoing Deputy Supt. 
Board of Education Business 

5.0 Transmittal of prior 5.1 Transmit prior year un-  Oct. 15 Deputy Supt. 
year financial data. audited financial statement. Business 

5.2 File prior-year Audit Dec. 15  Deputy Supt. 
with state control agencies. Business/ 
. Auditor 

34



December 20, 2018 Agenda Item #10.5 

SUPERINTENDENT’S RECOMMENDATION FOR BOARD ACTION 

SUBJECT: 

First Reading:  BB 9290:  Conflict of Interest 

DEPARTMENT/PROGRAM: 

Santa Cruz County Board of Education 

ACTION REQUESTED: 

Approval of update to the above Board Bylaw 

PREVIOUS STAFF/BOARD ACTION: 

Reviewed by Staff 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION AND/OR STATEMENT OF NEED: 

Board Bylaw 9290 has been updated to include the position of “Chief Technology Officer”.  The 
Board may:  accept the proposed policy as submitted and waive a second reading and move 
forward to take action; order changes; or order changes and bring back for a final reading. 

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS: 

None 

CONTACT PERSON(S): 

Mary Hart, Deputy Superintendent, Business Services 

35



To: Santa Cruz County Board of Trustees 

From: Mary Hart, Deputy Superintendent 

Date: December 20, 2018 

RE: BB 9290 

With the addition of the new Management Position “Chief Technology Office”  the Board of 

Trustees must update the attached Board Bylaw.  

The only change made to the document is reflected in the list of positions in Attachment A. 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
Ms. Jane Royer Barr 
Ms. Rose Filicetti 
Ms. Sandra Nichols 
Ms. Sue Roth 
Mr. Dana M. Sales 
Mr. Abel Sanchez 
Mr. Bruce Van Allen 

Michael C. Watkins, Superintendent • 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA 95060 • 831-466-5600 • FAX 831-466-5607 • www.santacruzcoe.org 

36



BB-9290 Board Bylaw 

Conflict of Interest 

Page 1 of 9 

Adoption 
The Political Reform Act, Government Code ("G.C.") sections 87300-87313, requires each 

public agency in California to adopt a conflict of interest code. In compliance therewith, the 

Santa Cruz County Board of Education ("County Board") has adopted this Conflict of Interest 

Code as of the date set forth below. This Conflict of Interest Code shall apply to all County 

Board Members, the Santa Cruz County Superintendent of Schools ("County Superintendent") 

and designated employees of the Santa Cruz County Office of Education ("SCCOE"). The list 

of designated employees of the SCCOE to which this Conflict of Interest Code applies is set 

forth in Exhibit A. 

In accordance with applicable law, County Board members, the County Superintendent and

designated employees shall disclose any conflict of interest and, as necessary, shall abstain 

from participating in the decision. 

Incompa tible Offices or Activities 

County Board members, the County Superintendent and employees of the SCCOE shall not 
I 

hold any office or engage in any employment or activity which is inconsistent with, 

incompatible with, in conflict with or inimical to their respective duties to the SCCOE. (G.C. 

sections: 1099 and 1126) 

Conflict of Interest Code 

This Conflict of Interest Code incorporates 2 CCR section 18730, and any amendments thereto 

adopted by the Fair Political Practices Commission, by this reference and includes the list of 

designated positions and disclosure categories set forth in Exhibit A. Each designated

employee, the County Superintendent of Schools and County Board member shall file annual 

Statemep.t of Economic Interests as required by this Conflict of Interest Code. 

I 

Upon direction by the code reviewing body (the Santa Cruz County Board of Supervisors), the 

County Board shall review this Conflict of Interest Code in even-numbered years.  If no change 

is required, the SCCOE shall submit a written statement to that effect to the code reviewing 

body by October 1.  If a change is necessitated by changed circumstances, the County Board 

shall submit an amended Conflict of Interest Code to the code reviewing body. (G.C. section 

87306.5) 

When a change in this Conflict of Interest Code is necessitated by changed circumstances such 

as the creation of new designated positions, amendments or revisions, the changed Conflict of 

Interest !Code shall be submitted to the code reviewing body within 90 days. (G.C. section 

87306) I

I

I 

When r viewing and preparing SCCOE's Conflict of Interest Code or amendments thereto, the 
County Board shall provide officers, employees, consultants and members of the community 

adequate notice and a fair opportunity present their views. (G.C. section 87311) 

If a County Board member, the County Superintendent of Schools or designated employee 

37



BB-9290 Board Bylaw 

Conflict of Interest 

Page 2 of 9 

determines that s/he has a financial interest in a decision as described in Government Code 

section 87103, this determination shall be disclosed and, as necessary, the individual shall 

abstain from participating in the decision. The County Board member shall be disqualified 

from voting unless his/her participation is legally required. (2 CCR section 18700) 

Statements of Economic Interest 
County Board members, the County Superintendent and designated employees shall annually 

file a Statement of Economic Interest/Form 700 in accordance with the disclosure categories 

specified in Exhibit A of this Conflict of Interest Code. A County Board member or County 

Superintendent who leaves office or a designated employee who leaves SCCOE employment 

shall, within 30 days, file a revised statement covering the period of time between the closing 

date of the last statement and the date of leaving office or SCCOE employment.  (G.C. sections 

87302, 87500) Statements of Economic Interests shall be available for public inspection and 

reproduction. (G.C. section 81008) 

Financial Interest 
County Board members, the County Superintendent and designated employees shall not be 

financially interested in any contract made by the SCCOE or in any contract made in their 

respective capacities for the SCCOE, including in the development, preliminary discussions, 

negotiations, compromises, planning, reasoning, and specifications and solicitations for bids. 

  section1090; Klistoff v. Superior Court, (2007) 157 Cal.App. 4th 469) 

The individual shall not be considered to be financially interested in a contract if his/her 

interest includes, but is not limited to, any of the following: (G.C. section 1091.5) 

1. That of an officer who is being reimbursed for his/her actual and necessary expenses

incurred in the performance of an official duty.

2. That of a recipient of public services generally provided by the public body or board

of which he/she is a member on the same terms and conditions as if he or she were

not a member of the board.

3. That of a landlord or tenant of the contracting party if such contracting party is the

federal government or any federal department or agency, this state or an adjoining

state, any department or agency of this state or an adjoining state, any county or city

of this state or an adjoining state, or any public corporation or special, judicial or

other public district of this state or an adjoining state unless the subject matter of

such contract is the property in which such officer or employee has such interest as

landlord or tenant in which his/her interest shall be deemed even a remote interest

within the mean of, and subject to, the provisions of Government Code section

1091. 

4. That of a spouse/registered domestic partner of an officer or employee of the

County Board/County Superintendent/SCCOE if the spouse's/registered domestic

partner's employment or office-holding has existed for at least one year prior to

38



BB-9290 Board Bylaw 

Conflict of Interest 

Page 3 of 9 

his/her election or appointment. 

5. That of a non-salaried member of a nonprofit corporation, provided that such

interest is disclosed to the County Board or County Superintendent at the time of the

first consideration of the contract and provided further that such interest is noted in

the SCCOE's official records.

6. That of a non-compensated officer of a non-profit, tax-exempt corporation which, as

one of its primary purposes, supports the functions of the nonprofit board or to which

the County Board or County Superintendent or SCCOE has a legal obligation to give

particular consideration and provided further that such interest is noted in its official

records.

7. That of a person receiving salary, per diem, or reimbursement for expenses from a

governmental entity unless the contract directly involves the department of the

government entity that employs the officer or employee, provided that such

interest is disclosed to the Board at the time of consideration of the contract, and

provided further that such interest is noted in its official records.

8. That of an attorney of the contracting party or that of an owner, officer, employee or

agent of a firm which renders, or has rendered, service to the contracting party in the

capacity of stockbroker, insurance agent, insurance broker, real estate agent, or real

estate broker, if these individuals have not received and will not receive

remuneration, consideration, or a commission as a result of the contract and if these

individuals have an ownership interest of less than 10 percent in the law practice or

firm, stock brokerage firm, insurance firm or real estate firm.

In addition, a County Board member, the County Superintendent, or an employee shall not be 

deemed to be interested in a contract made pursuant to competitive bidding under a procedure 

established by law if his/her sole interest is that of an officer, director, or employee of a bank or 

savings and loan association with which a party to the contract has the relationship of borrower 

or depos tor, debtor or creditor. (G.C. 1091.5) 

A County Board member, the County Superintendent or employee shall not be deemed to be 

financially interested in a contract if s/he has only a remote interest in the contract and if the 

remote interest is disclosed during a County Board meeting and noted in the official County 

Board minutes. The affected County Board member shall not vote or debate on the matter or 

attempt 1o influence any other County Board member to enter into the contract, except if the 

rule of necessity or legally required participation applies as defined in Government Code 

section &7101.  Remote interests are specified in Government Code section 109l (b).  They 

include, but are not limited to, the interest of a parent in the earnings of his/her minor child. 

  section 1091) 

39



Board Bylaw 

Conflict of Interest 

Page 4 of 9 

BB-9290     . 

Disqualification of Board Members Who Manage Public Investments 

A County Board member or officer of the SCCOE who manages public investments pursuant to 

Government Code section 87200 and who has a financial interest in a decision shall, upon 

identifying a conflict or potential conflict of interest and immediately prior to the consideration 

of the matter, do all of the following: 

1. Publicly identify the financial interest that gives rise to the conflict or potential

conflict of interest in detail sufficient to be understood by the public, except that

disclosure of the exact street address of a residence is not required. (G.C. section

87105) 

2. Recuse himself/herself from discussing and voting on the matter or otherwise acting

in violation of Government Code section 87100.  This County Board member shall

not be counted toward achieving a quorum while the item is discussed. (G.C. section

87105; 2 CCR section  18702.5)

3. Leave the room until after the discussion, vote and any other disposition of the

matter is concluded unless the matter has been placed on the portion of the agenda

reserved for uncontested matters. (G.C. section 87105)

The County Board member may speak on the issue during the time that the general 

public speaks on the issue.  The County Board member shall recuse himself/herself 

from voting on the matter and leave the dais to speak from the same area as 

members of the public.   S/he may listen to the public discussion of the matter with 

members of the public.  (G.C. section 87105; 2 CCR 18702.5) 

Common Law Doctrine Against Conflict of Interest 
A County Board member shall abstain from any official action in which his/her private or 

personal interest may conflict with his/her official duties. 

Gifts 

County Board members, the County Superintendent and designated employees may accept gifts 

only under the conditions and limitation specified in Government Code section 89503 and 2 

CCR section 18730. 

The limitations on gifts do not apply to wedding gifts and gifts exchanged between individuals 

on birthdays, holidays and other similar occasions, provided that the gifts exchanged are not 

substantially disproportionate in valued. (G.C. section 89503) 

Gifts of travel and related lodging and subsistence shall be subject to the prevailing gift 

limitation except as described in Government Code section 89506. 

A gift of travel does not include travel provided by the SCCOE for County Board members, the 

County Superintendent and designated employees. (G.C. section 89506) 

40



BB-9290 Board Bylaw 
Conflict of Interest 

Page 5 of 9 

Honoraria 

County Board members, the County Superintendent and designated employees shall not accept 

any honorarium which is defined as any payment made in consideration for any speech given, 

article published, or attendance at any public or private gathering, in accordance with law. 

(G.C. sections 89501, 89502) 

The term honorarium does not include: (G.C. section 89501) 

1. Earned income for personal services customarily provided in connection with a   

bona fide business, trade or profession unless the sole or predominant activity of 

the business, trade or profession is making speeches 

2. Any honorarium which is not used and, within 30 days after receipt, is either returned 

to the donor or delivered to the SCCOE for donation into the general fund without 

being claimed as a ded1fction from income for tax purposes. 

Legal References: 
Education Code: 

1006 Qualifications for holding office 

1040 et seq. Duties and responsibilities 

1042 Contracts for special services and advice 

1200-1294 Expenses 

1240 et Seq. Duties and responsibilities 

1281 Consultants 

1290-1296; 1311 Employees 

1298 Administrative Advisor 

1300 Retired employees 

Family Code: 

297.5 R i g h t s , protections, and benefits of registered domestic partners 

Government Code: 

1090-1099 Prohibi t ions  applicable to specified 

officers 1125-1129 I n c o m p a t i b l e  activities 

81000-9 014 Political Reform Act of 1974, especially: 

82011 Code reviewing body 

87100-8V103.6 G e n e r a l  prohibitions 87200-

8V210 Disclosure 

87300-8J313 C o n f l i c t  of interest code 

87500 Statements of economic interests 

89501-89503 Honoraria and gifts 

91000-9l 014 Enforcement 

41



BB-9290 Board Bylaw 

Conflict of Interest 

Page 6 of 9 

 

 

Penal Code: 

85-88 Bribes 

 
Code of Regulations, Title 2: 

18110-18997 Regulations of the Fair Political Practices Commission, especially: 

18702.5 Public identification of a conflict of interest for Section 87200 filers 

 
Court Decisions 

Klistoff v. Superior Court, (2007) 157 Cal.App.4th 469 

Thorpe v. Long Beach Community College District, (2000) 83 Cal.App.4th 655 

Kunec v. Brea Redevelopment Agency, (1997) 55 Cal.App.4th 511 

 
Attorney General Opinions: 

92 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 26 (2009) 

92 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 19 (2009) 

89 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 217 (2006) 

86 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 138(2003) 

85 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 60 (2002) 

82 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 83 (1999) 

81 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 327 (1998) 

80 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 320 (1997) 

69 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 255 (1986) 

68 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 171 (1985) 

65 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 606 (1982) 

63 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 868 (1980) 

 
Management Resources: 

FAIR POLITICAL PRACTICES COMMISSION PUBLICATIONS 

Can I Vote? A Basic Overview of Public Officials' Obligations Under the Conflict-of-Interest 

Rules, 2005 
1 

INSTITUTE FOR LOCAL GOVERNMENT PUBLICATIONS 
Understanding the Basics of Public Service Ethics: Personal Financial Gain Laws, 2009 

Understanding the Basics of Public Service Ethics: Transparency Laws, 2009 

WEB SITES 

CSBA: http://www.csba.org 

Fair Political Practices Commission: http://www.fppc.ca.gov 

Institute of Local Government: http://www.ca-ilg.org 
 

 
 

 

First Reading: October 21, 2010 

Second Reading: 

Date Revised and Adopted: 

42

http://www.csba.org/
http://www.fppc.ca.gov/
http://www.ca-ilg.org/


Board Bylaw 

Conflict of Interest 

Page 7 of 9 

BB-9290 

Exhibit A 
(SCCOE Conflict of Interest Code) 

Designated Positions I Disclosure Categories 

It is determined that persons occupying the following positions manage public investments and shall file a

full statement of economic interests pursuant to Government Code section 87300: 

Santa Cruz County Board of Education Trustees (County Board members) Santa Cruz 

County Superintendent of Schools 

1. Category 1

Persons occupying the following positions are designated employees in Category 1: Deputy 

Superintendent 

Chief Business Officer 

Assistant/Associate Superintendents Purchasing 

Assistant 

Persons in this category must report: 

a. Interests in real property located entirely or partly within the boundaries of the SCCOE or

within two miles of SCCOE boundaries of any land owned or used by the SCCOE.  Such

interests include any leasehold, beneficial or ownership interest or option to acquire such

interest in real property.

b. Investments or business positions in or income from sources which

1) are engaged in the acquisition or disposal of real property with the district

2) are contractors or subcontractors which are or have been within the past two

years engaged in work or services of the type used by the SCCOE or

3) manufacture or sell supplies, books, machinery or equipment of the type used by

the SCCOE

2. Category 2

Persons occupying the following positions are designated employees in Category 2: 

Administrative Assistant to the County Superintendent of Schools 

Senior Directors 

Directors 

Associate Directors 

Assistant Directors 

Supervisors 

Managers 

Program Directors 

Program Coordinators 

Chief Technology Officer 43



Board Bylaw 

Conflict of Interest 

Page 8 of 9 

BB-9290 

Persons in this category must report investments or business positions in or income 

from sources which: 

a) are contractors or subcontractors engaged in work or services of the type used

by the department which the designated person manages or directors or

b) manufacture or sell supplies, books, machinery or equipment of the type used

by the department which the designated person manages or directs.

Consultants are designated employees who must disclose financial interests as determined on a 

case-by-case basis by the County Superintendent or designee.  The County Superintendent or 

designee's written determination shall include a description of the consultant's duties and a 

statement of the extent of disclosure requirements based upon that description.  All such 

determinations are public records and shall be retained for public inspection along with this 

conflict of interest code. 

A consultant is an individual who, pursuant to a contract with the SCCOE, makes a 

governmental decision whether to: 

a) approve a rate, rule or regulation

b) adopt or enforce a law

c) issue, deny, suspend or revoke a permit, license, application, certificate,

approval, order or similar authorization or entitlement

d) authorize the SCCOE to enter into, modify or renew a contract that requires

SCCOE approval

e) grant SCCOE approval to a contract or contract specifications which require

SCCOE approval and in which the SCCOE is a party

f) grant SCCOE approval to a plan, design, report, study or similar item

g) adopt or grant SCCOE approval of SCCOE policies, standards or guidelines

44



Board Bylaw 

Conflict of Interest 

Page 9 of 9 

BB-9290 

Exhibit A Cont'd 
(SCCOE Conflict of Interest Code) 

A consultant is also an individual who, pursuant to a contract with the SCCOE, serves in a staff 

capacity with the SCCOE and in that capacity participates in making a governmental decision as 

defined in 2 CCR section 18702.2 or performs the same or substantially all the same duties for 

the SCCOE that would otherwise be performed by an individual holding a position specified in 

this Exhibit A as a designated position. (2 CCR section 18701) 

First Reading: 

Second Reading: 

Date Revised and Adopted: 

45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



1,200,000.00

1,200,000.00

1,200,000.00

1,835.84

1,364,340.01

1,725,705.32

67,680.77

15,753,121.25

357,373.18

270,466.68

1,028,071.75

440,798.19

2,219.80

605,724.11

1,835.84

1,355,127.01

1,725,705.32

67,680.77

15,124,521.05

357,373.18

265,466.68

1,028,071.75

440,798.19

1,089.58

581,861.37

1,835.84

1,573,371.64

1,850,568.91

67,680.77

77



14,710,532.77

249,162.31

240,466.68

1,028,071.75

44,439.07

638,952.58

557,861.37

78



79



283,437.10

16,764.00

200,160.84

16,764.00

80



81



82



83



2,160.34

2,160.34

2,944.76

84



85



86



87



1,016,892.70

1,016,892.70

1,016,892.70

88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103


	December 2018 - Regular Board Agenda
	REC - Regular Board Minutes
	Board Minutes - November 15, 2018
	REC - Budget Revisions
	Budget Revisions
	REC - Surplus  Items
	Surplus Items
	REC - Donations
	REC - Budget Development Calendar
	2019-20 Budget Development Process and Timelines
	REC - BB 9290
	December 2018 Agenda Item BB9290
	First Interim Financial Report
	Board Memo 2018-19 signed
	SACS Board




